
EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately.  Follow the green signs.  Use the stairs 
not the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

Notice of Meeting 

Overview and Scrutiny Commission 
Councillor Pickering (Chair),  
Councillor Welch (Vice-Chair),  
Councillors Barnard, C Eberle, Egglestone, M Forster, Haffegee, 
McKenzie-Boyle, McLean, C Thompson, Watts, Webb and Jefferies 
Victoria Hill, Parent Governor Representative 
One Vacancy, Parent Governor Representative 
One Vacancy, Church Representative (Church of England) 
One Vacancy, Church Representative (Roman Catholic) 
Also Invited: 
Councillor Iskander Jeffries, Executive Member: Culture, Delivery 
and Public Protection 
Superintendent Andrew Cranidge, Local Police Commander, 
Thames Valley 
Alison O’Meara, Head of Community Safety 
Thursday 30 November 2023, 6.30 - 8.00 pm 
Council Chamber - Time Square, Market Street, Bracknell,  
RG12 1JD 

 

 

Agenda 
All councillors at this meeting have adopted the Mayor’s Charter  

which fosters constructive and respectful debate. 

Item Description Page 
 
1.  Apologies for Absence   

 To receive apologies for absence and to note the attendance of any 
substitute Members. 

 

 
2.  Declarations of Interest and Party Whip   

 Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary or affected 
interests and the nature of that interest, including the existence and nature of 
the party whip, in respect of any matter to be considered at this meeting. 
 
Any Member with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a matter should 
withdraw from the meeting when the matter is under consideration and 
should notify the Democratic Services Officer in attendance that they are 
withdrawing as they have such an interest. If the Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interest is not entered on the register of Members interests the Monitoring 
Officer must be notified of the interest within 28 days. 
 
Any Member with an Affected Interest in a matter must disclose the interest 
to the meeting.  There is no requirement to withdraw from the meeting when 
the interest is only an affected interest, but the Monitoring Officer should be 
notified of the interest, if not previously notified of it, within 28 days of the 
meeting. 
 
 
 

 

 



EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately.  Follow the green signs.  Use the stairs 
not the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

3.  Urgent Items of Business   

 Any other items which, pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the Chairman decides are urgent. 

 

 
4.  Public Participation   

 To receive submissions from members of the public which have been 
submitted in advance in accordance with the Council’s Public Participation 
Scheme for Overview and Scrutiny. 

 

 
5.  Community Safety  5 - 38 

 To receive a presentation on, and to consider: the performance of the 
Community Safety Partnership and the priorities in the Community Safety 
Plan for the coming year. 
  
The Commission has invited the following guests to address the meeting: 
Councillor Iskander Jeffries, Executive Member for Culture, Delivery and 
Public Protection 
Superintendent Andrew Cranidge, Local Police Commander, Thames Valley 
Alison O’Meara, Head of Community Safety 
  
Members of the Commission are asked to submit technical or detailed 
questions in advance of the meeting. 

 

 
6.  Council Plan Overview Report  39 - 74 

 Council Plan Overview Report (CPOR) covering the second quarter of 
2023/24 is attached. 
  
Members of the Commission are asked to submit technical or detailed 
questions in advance of the meeting. 

 

 
7.  Work Programme Update   

 Overview and Scrutiny Panel Chairs to provide verbal updates on work they 
are undertaking and highlight any issues arising. 

 

Date of next meeting 

The next Overview and Scrutiny Commission meeting is scheduled for 11 January 2024. 
The focus of the meeting will be budget proposals 2024/25. 

Forward plan and decisions taken 

Commission members are able to view upcoming decisions by looking at Browse forward 
plans | Bracknell Forest Council (bracknell-forest.gov.uk) and consider decisions taken since 
the last Commission meeting by using this link What's newly published | Bracknell Forest 
Council (bracknell-forest.gov.uk) and altering the date range. 
Sound recording, photographing, filming and use of social media is permitted.  Please 
contact Louise Connelly, 01344354047, louise.connelly@bracknell-forest.gov.uk, so that any 
special arrangements can be made. 

https://democratic.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
https://democratic.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
https://democratic.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://democratic.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately.  Follow the green signs.  Use the stairs 
not the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

Published: 22 November 2023 



This page is intentionally left blank



Bracknell Forest Community Safety Partnership (CSP)
Annual Progress Report – 30 November 2023

Alison O’Meara
Head of Community Safety
Bracknell Forest Council

Temporary Chief Inspector Andrew Grahame
Deputy Local Police Area Commander
Thames Valley Police

5

Item
 5



Content

•  Information about the CSP

• Progress against CSP Key Focus Areas 2022/23

• Reported Crime and Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB)

• Questions

6



Information about the CSP 
1.

7



8



Legislative Framework of CSPs

Establishment of CSPs and their statutory duties are laid 
out in: 

• Crime and Disorder Act 1998 

• Crime and Disorder (Formulation and 
Implementation of Strategy) Regulations 2007

9



Statutory Duties of CSPs or Local Authorities 
CONTEST (Prevent Strand) – UK Counter-Terrorism Strategy

Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014

Modern Slavery Act 2015

Domestic Abuse Act 2021

Police, Crime, Sentencing and Courts Act 2022 

10



CSP Sub-Group Structure

11



o Prevent Steering Group (Statutory) – strategic group to safeguard children and adults by protecting and 
diverting them away from being drawn into terrorist activity

o Channel Panel (Statutory) – operational group to ensure that vulnerable children and adults receive support 
before their vulnerabilities are exploited by those that would want them to be drawn into terrorism, and 
before they become involved in criminal terrorist-related activity

o Domestic Abuse Executive (Statutory) – strategic group to improve outcomes for victims of domestic abuse, 
including their children, by identifying and addressing gaps in support, including those within safe 
accommodation

o Domestic Abuse Forum – a forum which identifies and promotes good practice so that professionals can work 
more effectively in partnership to reduce the incidence of domestic abuse in Bracknell Forest

o Partnership Problem-Solving Group – operational group to tackle complex and challenging crime and disorder 
issues of individuals and/or locations across the wider borough

o Town Centre Problem-Solving Group - operational group to tackle complex and challenging crime and 
disorder issues of individuals and/or locations in the town centre

o Serious Violence and Exploitation Strategic Group (Statutory) – strategic group to ensure effective, 
coordinated service provision is in place for those at risk of serious violence and/or exploitation 

o MACE/Makesafe – operational group to safeguard children at risk of going missing, being exploited and being 
a victim of serious violence 

o Adult Serious Violence and Exploitation Group (SAVE) – operational group to manage and support habitual 
knife carriers, safeguard adults at risk of serious violence and exploitation and tackle problematic hot-spot 
locations

CSP Sub-Group Purpose 

12



Bracknell Forest 
Council Plan 2023-2027 (DRAFT) 

 
Borough priority: 

Engaged and Healthy Communities

Goal: 

Residents have a safe and affordable 
place to live

Link between CSP and BFC 
Bracknell Forest 

Community Safety Partnership Plan 
2022-23 

Key Focus Areas

CSP’s Responsible 
Authority’s Work 

Plans

OPCC Police and 
Criminal Justice 
Plan 2021-2025

13



CSP Resources
People Money

BFC Community 
Safety Service Partnerships Fund (Police and Crime Commissioner)

DA Support in Safe Accommodation (Department of 
Levelling Up, Housing and Communities)  

14



15



Progress against Key Focus Areas 
2022/23

2.

16



CSP Key Focus Areas 2022/23
1 Tackle exploitation and serious violence across all ages

2 Reduce town centre anti-social behaviour and crime including shoplifting

3 Reduce harm caused by domestic abuse
• Management of perpetrators and enforcement
• Delivery of the Safe Accommodation Action Plan

Ongoing Monitoring and Response 
1 Borough-wide crime and anti-social behaviour hotspots

2 Burglary

3 Vehicle crime 

17



Key Focus 1: Tackle exploitation and serious violence 
across all ages

Serious Violence Duty

Serious Adult and Violence Exploitation (SAVE)

All-age Exploitation Strategy

Exploitation Training and Awareness

Fraud Victim Support

18



Youth Disorder and Safer Streets 4

Shoplifting

Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO)

Key Focus 2: Reduce town centre anti-social behaviour 
and crime 

19



Key Focus 3:  Reduce harm caused by domestic abuse
(Management of perpetrators and enforcement)

Who’s in Charge

Domestic Abuse Perpetration Service (DAPS)

Multi-Agency Tasking and Co-ordination (MATAC)

Domestic Violence Protection Notices/Orders 

20



Key Focus 3:  Reduce harm caused by domestic abuse
(Delivery of the Safe Accommodation Action Plan) 

Sanctuary Scheme

New Domestic Abuse Support Roles

Cost of Living Resources

Professional Training on Trauma

21



Case Study 1:
ASB/Cuckooing/Substance Misuse/Vulnerability 

• Adult with care and support needs
• Victim and perpetrator of Domestic Abuse
• Accommodated with floating support in place 
• Escalating drug and alcohol abuse
• Reports of ASB at property
• Suspected of being ‘cuckooed’
• National Referral Mechanism (NRM)
• Referral into the Partnership Problem-Solving Group (PPSG)
• Partial Closure Order 
• Specialist Offender Manager facilitated engagement and provided support
• Person was supported with a move out of area 

22



Case Study 2:
Complex DA and substance misuse

• Adult attended New Hope for help 
• Coercive and controlling behaviour from a parent
• Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Framework meeting held
• Plain Talking Therapy
• Housing Options identified
• Abuse intensified and police became involved
• Secure accommodation arranged
• Person stopped turning to drink and drugs
• Found employment
• Continues to be supported

.

23



Case Study 3:
Domestic Abuse Safe Accommodation  

• Female experiencing domestic abuse in family home
• Mental health needs increased and became unemployed 
• Initial move into refuge and assessments completed
• Multiple referrals and applications were made as a result
• Granted support through a part-time personal assistant
• Moved into permanent settled accommodation 
• Offered paid employment 

24



Reported Crime and ASB

3.

25



26



% change on 
last year

Violence 
with 

Injury

Violence 
without 
Injury

Harassment ASB All Crime

Bracknell 
Forest

762
(253 DA)

-1%

1109
(794 DA)

+2%

1155*

+30%

*Please note that 
there are no DA 

figures available.

227*

+8%

*Please note that 
there are no DA 

figures available.

7673 
(1356 DA)

+9%*

*Please note that there were 37 
crimes that were not mapped but 

included in our LPA figures

Thames 
Valley

17,738
(5607 DA)

-0%

50,755
(17,836 DA)

+7%

5630
(1200 DA)

+23%

4323

+13%

183,165
(29,639)

+3%

27



Crimes involving a knife 
(excluding possession)

% change on last year

2022/2023 Knife enabled crime has shown a 
significant decrease. As an LPA 
we continue to robustly deal 

with these types of offences and 
these figures depict how a 

targeted response can have a 
positive impact. With the 

combination of educational talks, 
engagement with schools, 

thorough investigations, and 
weekly knife crime meetings the 
figures reflect the determination 

to reduce such offences.

Bracknell Forest 39 
(11 DA)

-7%

Thames Valley 1222
(219 DA)

-1%

28



Formal action taken against 
Domestic Abuse

2021/22 2022/23

Outcomes as a % of 
investigations

15%
(TVP 13%)

13%
(TVP 13%)

DVPNs* 7 14

*Domestic Violence Protection Notices

29



Formal action taken against 
Sexual Offences as a % of 

investigations

Rape Other Sexual Offences

Bracknell Forest 92
(53 DA)

+9%

+31%

Thames Valley 1358
(626 DA)

+19%

+28%

30



Questions

4.

31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Bracknell Forest Community Safety 
Partnership (CSP)

Annual Progress Report – 30 
November 2023

Notes for pages 14-17

33



Key Focus 1: Tackle exploitation and 
serious violence across all ages

The Serious Violence Duty, which effectively went live in December last year, places quite significant requirements on CSPs across the country 
and quite rightly so. The tragedies due to knife crime that we read about in our newspapers are devastating. Yet they are preventable. This year, 
we have undertaken an analysis of serious violence in Bracknell Forest across all ages – both in public space and private space and are in the 
process of taking a new strategy through the partnership and Council-approval process. We have included the voices of residents of all ages as 
well as professionals and will be setting a challenging but realistic work plan to steer our work in coming months. While our levels of serious 
violence are low in number, our aim is to prevent the risk of them happening in the first place.

SAVE stands for Serious Adult Violence and Exploitation. We know that our approach to safeguarding those under 18 who are at risk of Serious 
Violence and Exploitation is mature and robust. However, we know that risk extends beyond the age of 17 so we have developed this cross-
organisational operational response especially for adults. Upon its launch last year, the group didn’t get that many referrals, so we are re-
launching it again this year with more awareness and information.

The next 2 items on the slide all relate to our ambitions with Exploitation prevention.

The first is to compile an all-age Exploitation Strategy to understand what it looks like in Bracknell Forest and address the threat beyond 
childhood.

The second is to develop a training and awareness offer to those out in the community who may suspect exploitation but not know what to do 
and how to get help. Here we are looking towards taxi drivers, security staff, shop owners, hotel staff and also just people out and about who are 
natural guardians of those who are vulnerable.

When we think about exploitation, we perhaps don’t immediately consider financial scams and fraud and how severely they impact our older 
residents who can be relentlessly targeted to hand over money to highly sophisticated scammers. This year, Bracknell Forest, through the 
Police and Crime Commissioner's Partnerships Fund, has funded a 2-year project which supports those who have been scammed by installing 
call blockers, exploring ways to get money back and also highlighting latest scams to community groups and Council social care teams.

I will include how to make a referral in the notes from this meeting which can be shared widely within communities. 

34



Key Focus 2: Reduce town centre anti-
social behaviour and crime 

Youth Disorder and SS4

Post COVID, the levels of ASB in the Town Centre have been growing. A multi-partner group was set up to provide a combination of support 
and diversion to the young people as well as holding them to account for crimes committed. Under the banner of Safer Streets 4 which was a 
government fund that Bracknell, Wokingham and Windsor Maidenhead had been successful bidding for, Berkshire Youth conducted outreach 
throughout the town centre, offered a programme of activities over the summer including a 3-day camping trip, cooking classes, sport events, 
days to the Beach and to London and also worked with Bracknell Town Council to hold activities at Braccan Walk Youth Centre. Alongside the 
supportive work, there was also enforcement activities in the form of additional police operations and referrals into the Council’s Youth Justice 
Team to prevent an escalation into more serious offending. Safer Streets 4 has come to an end now . However, the Town Centre Partnership 
Problem-Solving Group continue to monitor and respond to levels of ASB in the town centre and we are hopeful at identifying a way to sustain 
some of the work that was delivered under Safer Streets 4.

Shoplifting

There has been significant focus on increases in shoplifting in the media over recent months and it seems to very much be a nationwide issue. 
Bracknell Forest Town Centre has not escaped the same trend unfortunately and we have heard of quite significant losses in stock by our key 
tenants in the Town Centre. However, these incidents weren’t being reported to police which meant that an enforcement response was not in 
place. There was also lack of understanding over how shoplifting reports were investigated and the levels of CCTV capability within stores and 
how to submit evidence. The CSP created a group with police, Community Safety, Lexicon, Town Centre Economic Development and the Peel 
Centre and set out a process for retailers to follow to report shoplifting officially so that we understood where it was taking place and who was 
doing it. Police Assessment and Investigation Unit (AIU) have also worked with us to unblock barriers which led to incidents being filed without 
action. A meeting with retailers in the Town Centre who were being hit the hardest by shoplifting took place in July to explain the reporting 
process and, in recent months, we have seen an almost vertical rise in reported shoplifting which is what we needed as now we can respond in 
an evidence-based way. A separate piece of work is also taking place to jointly tackle prolific shoplifters who are active in the borough and a 
number of arrests and charges have taken place. It's important to note that proceeding to prosecution lies in the hands of the Crown Prosecution 
Service and, as shoplifting is not considered a high impact crime, this does not always happen. We now have 2 dedicated police officers for the 
Town Centre and recent operations tackling retail crime have been fruitful.
 
Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO)

Partner and public consultation told us there was overwhelming support to extend the current PSPO that we have in place in the town centre. 
The PSPO gives authorised officers additional powers to seize and confiscate alcohol where it is, or is likely to, cause ASB. They last for 3 
years and the one we have expired this year. We will need to look at this again in 2026.

35



Key Focus 3:  Reduce harm caused by 
domestic abuse

(Management of perpetrators and 
enforcement)

Who’s in Charge

• Who’s in Charge? is a 9-week child to parent violence (CPV) programme aimed at parents whose children are being abusive or violent 
toward them or who appear out of parental control.

• This year so far, the project has reached 26 families and 51 children, with 6 groups due to run this year
• The general, overriding comment from parents is knowing someone else is experiencing the same difficulties is a relief,  a feeling of 

companionship and inclusion with all commenting that they feel that they are not judged. 

DAPS

• 121 intervention for perpetrators in families where there are children who are on a protection plan or are children in need
• Of the 40 clients that engaged with DAPS in 22/23, 90% don’t re-offend as far as we are aware in terms of reports to police or other partners.
• There is also complementary support for victims in those families too which is important 
• It is noted that in 2022, OFSTED graded BFC ‘s children’s services as “outstanding” with a special mention, in their report, of the Domestic 

Abuse support and reporting

MATAC 
• Partners that come together to manage perpetrators who pose the highest risk in terms of frequent DA, recent DA and most harmful DA. 
• Due to challenging resourcing issues, MATAC faltered a little during the year. However, it now has a Domestic Abuse Offender Management 

Coordinator and an administrator and is being chaired by a local Problem-solving Sergeant and Community Safety so is back on track with 
robust support and direction.

DVPN/Os

• A DVPN is an emergency non-molestation and eviction notice which can be issued by the police, when attending to a domestic abuse 
incident, to a perpetrator. A DVPO is a civil order made by the court.

• Historically these tools been under-used so awareness and training is currently being undertaken by TVP to increase the numbers used 
locally. From October this year, the number of these will be monitored by MATAC to encourage use where appropriate..

36



Key Focus 3:  Reduce harm caused by 
domestic abuse

(Delivery of the Safe Accommodation 
Action Plan)

Sanctuary Scheme

• Introducing this scheme where victims can access safety modification to their home was a recommendation in the Strategy – based on victim/survivor 
support

• It provides additional protection by strengthening access points to the property e.g. multiple locking systems, reinforced doors, window locks, emergency 
lighting, letterbox protection

• There were 43 referrals in 22/23 with 35 proceeding. 
• Sanctuaries aren’t completed in isolation: they are combined with a safety plan and outreach support and DVPOs pr DVPNs can also be included 

New Domestic Abuse Support Roles

• Introducing a single point of contact within the housing service to support victim survivors who are leaving an abusive relationship was also a 
recommendation in the strategy 

• Accordingly, a DA Housing Support Officer has been in post since July 2022, fixed term min 2 years and will act as the key contact point for other 
organisations (and other parts of the council) for housing operational matters (DA). 

• We also have a BWA Safe Accommodation Outreach worker in post whose role is to provide high quality support, risk assessment, information and 
advocacy to victims of domestic abuse in safe accommodation.

Cost of Living Resources

The current cost of living crisis is having an impact on many residents, but it significantly exacerbates the barriers that victims of domestic abuse face when 
leaving an abusive relationship.  Support and advice is provided through BFC’s Welfare Service and, in addition to that, the CSP has developed a collection of 
DA-specific advice from a range of charities and organisations, and this can be found on our DA webpages. 

Professional Training on Trauma

•  Another recommendation based on feedback from victims and survivors was training for professionals who come into contact with them on the impact 
of DA on adults and children and how it how it affects mental health and well-being. We listened to this and commissioned Thames Valley Partnership to 
deliver this training in 22/23. We had a lot of interest and ran additional sessions due to the demand. So far, 5 sessions have run with 66 delegates 
being trained and we will continue to run the training to ensure that professionals have that understanding of just how traumatic DA is.

37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



To: The Executive 
23 January 2024 

  
 

Council Plan Overview Report 
Chief Executive  

 
1 Purpose of Report 
1.1 To inform the Executive of the performance of the council over the second quarter of the 

2023/24 financial year (July-September 2023). 

2 Recommendation 
2.1 To note the performance of the council over the period from July-September 

2023 highlighted in the Overview Report in Annex A, this includes any 
recommendations made by Overview and Scrutiny in Annex B. 

3 Reasons for Recommendation 
3.1 To brief the Executive on the council’s performance, highlighting key areas, so that 

appropriate action can be taken if needed. 

4 Alternative Options Considered 
4.1 None applicable. 

5 Supporting Information 
5.1 The council’s performance management framework requires the preparation of 

Quarterly Service Reports (QSRs) by each department. These QSRs provide an 
update of progress and performance against departmental Service Plans and are 
published on the intranet.  

5.2 The QSRs have been combined into the Council Plan Overview Report (CPOR), which 
brings together the progress and performance of the council as a whole. The CPOR 
enables the Corporate Management Team and the Councillors to review performance, 
highlight any exceptions and note any remedial actions that may be necessary, either 
from under-performing or over-performing services, across the range of council 
activities. The current CPOR report reflects the outgoing Council Plan. Reporting on 
the new plan will commence for Q1 (April – June) 2024.  

5.3 The CPOR performance information will also be reviewed by Overview and Scrutiny. 
This process enables all Members to be involved in performance management. Any 
recommendations made by the Overview and Scrutiny Commission will be included 
within the report for the Executive to consider.  

5.4 The CPOR for the second quarter (July-September 2023) is shown in Annex A. 
5.5 Key achievements during quarter two have included: 

• Multiple ‘Summer of Fun’ events took place across the borough, celebrating 
diverse communities and community cohesion. Events included Bracknell Forest 
Community Day, Yellow Brick Road event, Summer Treasure Hunt and Paws in 
the Park. 

• Launch of the borough’s first Great Wellness Exchange and happiness drop-in 
sessions.  A new outdoor gym has been opened at The Parks and ‘Cycle 
September’ was a success. 

39

Item 6



• The new Binfield Health and Community Hub has been completed including the 
relocated Binfield Surgery and the team is now working with Binfield Parish Council 
to put in place arrangements for their management and operation of the community 
centre. 

• The Inaugural Climate Change Summit took place over two days in July and was 
very well attended.  Following the summit, the annual report on the delivery of the 
Climate Change Strategy was completed which highlighted the good progress 
being made. 

• A new migration team went live enabling improved forecasting and management of 
the strategic risks, as well as coordinated and consistent support and advice for all 
migrants arriving in the borough. 

5.6 There also continue to be challenges the council is working to resolve: 

• There continues to be substantial financial pressures with a risk of an overspend at 
year end of 1.8m- £2.2m.  This is an improved position compared to Q1, but the 
focus on containing costs within originally approved budget remains across all 
directorates. Extensive work has been underway during Q2 related to developing 
the budget for 2024/25, this will continue throughout Q3.  

• Children’s Social Care caseloads remain high due to a variety of reasons including 
resource challenges and the impact of Covid.  The team continue to work with 
children and families directly to identify appropriate support. 

• There is continued increase in demand and complexity across Adult Social Care 
including rising costs of residential and nursing placements and changing 
demographics. Change and transformation activity continues across the service to 
ensure that ways of working are in keeping with future changes and focus on 
efficiency. 

• Difficulties in recruiting and retaining roles also remains, especially in social care 
and legal services. This is a focus of the new business change programme. 

• Bracknell Regeneration Partnership (BRP) took the decision to stop the 
development of The Deck in its current form due to viability issues.  It is exploring 
alternative options and meanwhile uses for the site. 

 

6 Advice Received from Statutory and Other Officers 
Legal Advice 

6.1 There are no specific legal implications relevant to this report.  
Financial Advice 

6.2 There are no specific finance implications relevant to this report. Key budget information 
is included in section two.  
Other Consultation Responses 

6.3 None specific 
Equalities Impact Assessment 

6.4 This report does not require an equalities impact assessment as this is a management 
reporting tool.  
Strategic Risk Management Issues  

6.5 There are no specific strategic risk implications relevant to this report. 
Climate Change and Ecological Implications 

40



6.6 The recommendations in Section 2 above are expected to have no impact on emissions 
of CO2 or ecological considerations. The reasons the Council believes that this will have 
no impact are that this is a management reporting tool. 
Health & Wellbeing Considerations 

6.7 There are no specific health and wellbeing implications relevant to this report. 

Background Papers 

All performance reports (sharepoint.com)  
QSR – Chief Executive Office – Quarter 2 2023-24 
QSR – People Directorate – Quarter 2 2023-24 
QSR – Delivery Directorate – Quarter 2 2023-24 
QSR – Resources Directorate – Quarter 2 2023-24 
QSR – Place Planning & Regeneration Directorate – Quarter 2 2023-24 
 
 
Contact for further information 
 
Katie Flint, Chief Executive’s Office - 01344 352217 
Katie.flint@bracknell-forest.gov.uk  
 
Lisa Ratcliffe, Chief Executive’s Office – 01344 351718 
Lisa.ratcliffe@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
 
 

41

https://bfcouncil.sharepoint.com/SitePages/Performance-reports.aspx
mailto:katie.flint@bracknell-forest.gov.uk
mailto:Lisa.ratcliffe@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



  Annex A 

   

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
COUNCIL PLAN 
OVERVIEW 
REPORT 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Q2 2023 - 24 
July – September 2023 
 
 
 
Chief Executive: 
Susan Halliwell 

43



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 2 

Contents 
 
Section 1: Chief Executive’s Commentary ...............................................................................3 

Introduction ...........................................................................................................................3 
Overview of Q2 and what went especially well ....................................................................5 
Challenges and Forward look ...............................................................................................6 

Section 2: Budget Position .......................................................................................................7 
Section 3: Strategic Themes ..................................................................................................11 

Value for money .................................................................................................................11 
Economic resilience ...........................................................................................................13 
Education and skills ............................................................................................................15 
Caring for you and your family ...........................................................................................18 
Protecting and enhancing our environment ........................................................................22 
Communities ......................................................................................................................24 

Section 4: Corporate Health ...................................................................................................26 
Summary of People ............................................................................................................26 
Summary of Complaints .....................................................................................................29 
Strategic Risks and Audits .................................................................................................31 

Section 5: Community Health ................................................................................................32 

 
 
 
 
Key  
 

 Performance is very good 

 Performance is causing concern 

 Performance is weak 

 RAG rating not applicable  

 Missing data 

 Missing target 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

44



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 3 

Section 1: Chief Executive’s Commentary 
Introduction  
 
1.1 This report sets out an overview of the council’s performance for the second quarter 

of 2023/24 (July - September 2023).  It reports on the progress of delivering the 
commitments set out in the Council Plan. The purpose is to formally provide the 
Executive with a high-level summary of key achievements, and to highlight areas 
where performance was not matching targets or expectations, along with any 
remedial action that is being taken. It complements the detailed directorate Quarterly 
Service Reports (QSRs).  
 

1.2 The current CPOR report reflects the outgoing Council Plan. Reporting on the new 
plan will commence for Q1 (April – June) 2024. 
 

1.3 This is the second quarterly report of the 2023/24 financial year and at the end of the 
second quarter there were 104 actions to be reported.  Of these, 15 are complete 
(14%).  Of the 89 actions, in progress:  

• 67 actions are green (75%) 
• 21 actions are amber (24%) 
• 1 actions is red (1%) 

 
 

      
 
1.4 Section three of this report contains information on the performance indicators across 

the council for each of the strategic themes.  Indicators have continued to be included 
in this quarter’s CPOR, however as the majority of these were established at the start 
of the council plan period, in 2019, some are no longer particularly relevant to 
measuring the current priorities. For Q2, there were 47 indicators presented. The 
status for the key indicators in the Council Plan in the second quarter is: 

 
• 31 are green (66%) 
• 0 are amber 
• 4 are red (9%) 

 
12 indicators (26%) have no target set as they are for monitoring only, these provide 
intelligence about specific trends, but where a directional target may not be 
appropriate. There were four annual indicators under Education and Skills reported in 
the Q1 report that are not due to be reported at Q2 and therefore not included. 

 

45



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 4 

 
 

 
1.5 The full suite of performance indicators is being reviewed as part of the next Council 

Plan development.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
  

46



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 5 

 Overview of Q2 and highlights 
  

 
Multiple ‘Summer of Fun’ 

events celebrating 
diverse communities and 

community cohesion  
 

 

 
Transfer of Bucklers 

Park community hub in 
Crowthorne to council 

ownership 
 

 

 
New migration team 

launched to support all 
migrants arriving in the 

borough 
 

     

 
 

Borough’s first Great 
Wellness Exchange and 

happiness drop-in 
sessions launched 

 

 

 
 

New outdoor gym with a 
range of equipment 

opened at The Parks 
 

 

 
 

‘Cycle September’ 
achieved a 20% increase 
in participation vs. 2022 

 
     

 
Binfield Health and 

Community Hub 
completed inc. relocated 

Binfield Surgery 
 

 

 
Car park improvements 

at Horseshoe Lake 
completed 

 

 

 
Inaugural Climate 

Change Summit took 
place in July 

 
 
 
  

47



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 6 

 Challenges identified and being addressed 
 

 
 

Continued threat of 
overspend for rest of 

year. This has improved 
since Q1, and focus on 
managing costs within 

original budget remains 
a priority 

 

 

 
Children's Social Care 
caseloads remain high. 

Reasons include 
resource challenges and 

Covid impact. Work is 
continuing with families 

directly to identify 
appropriate support 

 

 

  
 

Continued limited 
availability of special 
educational needs 

provision and increasing 
costs of placements. 

Addressing this will be a 
focus of the Safety Valve 

programme 
 

     
 

 
 

Continued increase in 
demand and complexity 
across Adult Social Care 
including rising costs of 
residential and nursing 

placements and 
changing demographics 

 

 

  
 

Difficulties continue in 
recruiting and retaining 

roles, especially in social 
care and legal. This is a 

focus of the new 
business change 

programme 
 

 

 
 

Bracknell Regeneration 
Partnership decision to 

stop development of The 
Deck in its current form 
due to viability issues.  
Alternatives are being 

considered, the council 
will work with investors 

 
     

Prepartion during Q2 has focused on the 2024/25 budget. This has 
highlighted further financial pressure which will be further explored 
during the continued process in Q3 and Q4.  

 
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

48



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 7 

Section 2: Budget Position  
 

Revenue budget monitoring 

The monthly monitoring returns are set out in detail in each directorate’s Quarterly Service 
Report (QSR).  The information provided for the Quarter 2 financial position is based on data 
presented to the Corporate Management Team in October. 

The returns provided by all directorates include a forecast variance plus any Emerging 
Issues.  Across the Council, variances have been identified indicating expenditure above the 
approved budget (£1.278m), after taking into account the balance on the Corporate 
Contingency (£2.261m). Once Emerging Issues are included, the overspend increases to 
£1.702m.  This is a significant improvement on the position reported verbally to the Overview 
and Scrutiny Commission by the Executive Director, Resources when presenting the Q1 
CPOR, although it excludes the impact of the 2023/24 pay award, which has been confirmed 
in Q3 and will be included in more recent updates. The current offer would exceed the 4% 
built into the budget by approximately £0.5m.   

There is the option of using part of the £1.5m balance on the Council’s Inflation Reserve to 
meet this additional cost.  At this point, however, the Corporate Management Team is 
focused on containing all costs within the originally approved budget, to protect the Council’s 
future financial position.  Consequently, the potential overspend to be addressed over the 
remainder of the year is in the range of £1.8m to £2.2m. 

Key information around directorate variances being reported follows.  

  

49



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 8 

 

 

50



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 9 

 

 

51



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 10 

 
 

 
 

52



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 11 

Section 3: Strategic Themes 
Value for money 

 

53



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 12 

 
 
 
 

 

 
Note: L418 no data recorded for Q1, a new automatic counter was installed at the beginning of July to provide 
data from Q2 onward. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

54



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 13 

Economic resilience 
 

 
 

55



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 14 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

56



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 15 

Education and skills 
 

 
 
 
 

57



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 16 

 

58



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 17 

 
 

 
 
Note: There were four annual indicators reported at Q1 that are not due to be reported in this Q2 report and are 
therefore not included here. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

59



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 18 

Caring for you and your family 
 

 

60



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 19 

 

61



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 20 

 
 

 
 

62



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 21 

 
 
Note: Data for L415 & L416 is provided by an external agency, after the CPOR report is published.  Therefore, 
data for Q2 reflects the latest available data. The Q3 report will include an updated result. 
 
 

63



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 22 

Protecting and enhancing our environment 

 
 
 

64



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 23 

 
 
Note: There are five annual indicators for this theme that are due to be reported in the Q4 report. 
 

65



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 24 

Communities 
 

 

66



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 25 

 

 
 
 
 
 

67



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 26 

Section 4: Corporate Health  
 
Summary of People  
 
Staff Voluntary Turnover 
 

 
 

Comparator data % 
Total voluntary turnover for BFC, 22/23:                         14.5 

Average voluntary turnover rate UK public sector 2021:                     8.8 

Average Local Government England voluntary turnover 2020:   10 

        (Source: XpertHR Labour Turnover Rates 2022 and LGA Workforce Survey 2021) 
 
 

16.5%

10.3%

12.7%
11.5%

21.1%

14.8%14.3%

11.8%
10.8%

7.7%

16.7%

12.9%13.6% 14.3%
12.3%

6.5%

10.4%

12.8%

People Delivery PPR Resources Chief Execs Total (Non 
Schools)

Last year average 30/06/2023 30/09/2023

Staff voluntary turnover - by directorate
Last year vs. Q1 & Q2

68



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 27 

Staff Sickness 
 

Department Q2 2023/24 Days 
per employee 

2022/23 
Actual Average 

days per 
employee 

2023/24 
Estimated Annual 
average days per 

employee 

People 2.2 10.65 8.25 

Delivery 2.1 7.64 7.2 

PPR 1.0 5.3 3.99 

Resources 1.2 6.97 4.88 

Chief Executive’s Office 1.9 2.49 9.02 

Total staff sickness  
excl. maintained schools 1.9 8.61 7.18 

 

 
 

Comparator data All employees, average days 
sickness absence per employee 

Bracknell Forest Council (excl. Schools) 22/23 8.61 

Public Sector employers 2021          6.4 

     (Source: ONS Sickness absence in the UK labour market) 
 
People 
Absence has increased since last quarter with the number of days lost going up by 11%.  
Long-term sickness equates to 56% of the total absence this quarter which is slightly up on last 
quarter. There were 26 members of staff off long-term during the quarter, 16 of which have since 
returned to work.  
 
Figures still suggest a lower absence rate overall for 2023-24. 

2.7

1.9

1.5
1.8

0.7

2.2
2.0

1.5

1.0

1.4

2.5

1.7

2.2 2.1

1.0
1.2

1.9 1.9

People Delivery PPR Resources Chief Execs Total (Non 
Schools)

Last year average 30/06/2023 30/09/2023

Sickness absence - Days per employee by directorate
Last year vs. Q1 & Q2

69



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 28 

 
Delivery 
There has been a significant increase in the number of days lost this quarter compared to last 
quarter. The number of days lost has increased by approximately 45%.  
 
Long-term sickness equates to 45% of the total absence this quarter, this is slightly lower than last 
quarter showing the increase is mainly among short-term absences. There were six members of staff 
off long-term during the quarter, four of whom have since returned to work. 
 
Place, Planning and Regeneration 
Absence this quarter is very similar to last quarter.  
 
Long-term sickness equates to approximately 43% of the absence this quarter. There were less than 
five* members of staff were off long-term during the quarter and none have yet returned.  
 

Resources 
Absence has decreased slightly since last quarter. The number of days lost is approximately 12% 
lower than last quarter.  
 
Long-term sickness equates to approximately 75% of the absence this quarter. There were less than 
five* members of staff off long-term during the quarter, one of whom has returned to work.  
 
 
Chief Executive’s Office 
Absence has decreased since last quarter. The number of days lost has decreased by approximately 
25%.  

Long-term sickness equates to 72% of the absence this quarter. There were less than five* members 
of staff off long-term during the quarter, one of whom has returned to work.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*supressed due to small number 

70



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 29 

Summary of Complaints  
 
Key – 
Q1 – Quarter one Q2 – Quarter two YTD – Year to Date 
SS1 – Statutory stage one SS2 – Statutory stage two  SS3 – Statutory Stage three 
S1 – Stage one S2 - Stage two S3 – Stage three 
LGSCO - Local Government Ombudsman and Social Care Ombudsman 
DVH - discrimination, harassment or victimisation complaints 

 

  

Year to date 
• Fully upheld – 2 
• Partially upheld – 7 
• Not upheld – 6 
• No finding - 1 
• In progress – 4 
• Onto next stage – 0 
• No investigation – 0 
• Premature complaint - 0 

Year to date 
• Fully upheld – 2 
• Partially upheld – 17 
• Not upheld – 18 
• No finding - 3 
• In progress – 9 
• Onto next stage – 3 
• No investigation – 1 
• Premature complaint - 0 

 

  
Year to date 

• Fully upheld – 0 
• Partially upheld – 8 
• Not upheld – 6 
• No finding - 2 
• In progress – 3 
• Onto next stage – 5 
• No investigation – 0 
• Premature complaint - 0 

Year to date 
• Fully upheld – 36 
• Partially upheld – 34 
• Not upheld – 12 
• No finding - 5 
• In progress – 19 
• Onto next stage – 12 
• No investigation – 0 
• Premature complaint - 2 
 

71



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 30 

  
Year to date 

• Fully upheld – 1 
• Partially upheld – 0 
• Not upheld – 7 
• No finding - 0 
• In progress – 2 
• Onto next stage - 0 
• No investigation – 0 
• Premature complaint - 1 

Year to date 
• Fully upheld – 27 
• Partially upheld – 1 
• Not upheld – 0 
• No finding - 0 
• In progress – 0 
• Onto next stage - 0 
• No investigation – 0 
• Premature complaint - 0 

 
 

  
Year to date 

• Fully upheld – 2 
• Partially upheld – 8 
• Not upheld – 12 
• No finding - 0 
• In progress – 3 
• Onto next stage - 1 
• No investigation – 0 
• Premature complaint - 0 

Year to date 
• Fully upheld – 0 
• Partially upheld – 1 
• Not upheld – 0 
• No finding - 0 
• In progress – 1 
• Onto next stage - 0 
• No investigation – 0 
• Premature complaint - 0 

 
Note: The Chief Executive’s Office is not normally included within the complaints reporting due 
to the minimal frequency of complaints received, however data is included for Q2 due to a 
complaint being received, and subsequently escalated. 
 
Learning from complaints 
The majority of upheld and partially upheld complaints are related to Education & Learning (70), 
Resources (28) and Childrens' Services (19). The main themes of these cases are timeliness, 
decisions and outcomes, and communication. Reflection and learning from complaints takes 
place regularly within services. To provide greater visibility, additional detail related to the 
volumes and themes of learning points and associated actions will be reported from Q3.   

72



DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 31 

Strategic Risks and Audits 
The Strategic Risk Register was reviewed at the Strategic Risk Management Group (SRMG) 
and Corporate Management Team on 17th August and 6th September respectively before 
being presented for feedback at the Governance and Audit Committee on 20th September. 
This was the new Register created following the CMT Away Day on 20th February and 
following further discussion at CMT and SRMG it concluded that the following 7 risks to be 
included: 
 

• Financial sustainability  
• Impact of pressures on local health system 
• Climate change net zero 
• Cyber 
• Local economy 
• Demand management 
• Staffing recruitment and retention 

 
The full Register can be seen in the papers for the Governance Audit Committee on 20th 
September on the Council’s public website Agenda for Governance & Audit Committee on 
Wednesday, 20 September 2023, 7.30 pm (moderngov.co.uk) which also includes the Head 
of Audit and Risk Management’s  Interim Report summarising the outcome of audits for the 
by year to date. 
 
  

73

https://bracknell-forestintranet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=526&MId=12020&Ver=4
https://bracknell-forestintranet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=526&MId=12020&Ver=4


DRAFT 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2023-24  Page 32 

Section 5: Community Health 
There are several indicators available to benchmark council performance on by using LG 
Inform. In particular, it can be useful to compare performance with CIPFA neighbours which 
represent a group of authorities with similar characteristics. Therefore, this comparison is 
used along with the English authority average. The purpose of including the community 
health data is to provide wider context for assessing the performance of delivering the 
Council Plan priorities and to further support decision making and planning. The needs and 
patterns within the community will affect the delivery of council services and achievement of 
the priorities. It also may suggest where new areas of focus are needed. The specific items 
below are pilot indicators included to show the range of possible areas that can be reported.  

 

Bracknell Forest (Quantiles of All English unitary authorities) 
Bracknell Forest 

(Quantiles of All English unitary authorities) 

Average happiness rating 2021/22 Mean  

 
Average life satisfaction rating 2021/22 Mean  

 
 % of pupils meeting the expected standard at 
KS2 in reading, writing and maths 2022/23 
(academic) % *updated since COPR Q1 

 
Second or subsequent child protection plans 
(%) 2021/22 %  

 
 % 19 to 21 year old care leavers in education, 
employment or training 2021/22 %  

 
% of population aged 16-65 on Universal 
Credit Sep 2023 % *updated since COPR Q1 

 
 Employment rate (%) 2023 Q1 (12 months 
ending) %  

 

 Rate of births of new enterprises 2021 
Enterprises per 10,000 people  

 
 % Ultrafast broadband availability 2023 %   

 Total recorded offences (excluding fraud) (per 
1,000 population) 2023 Q1 (12 months 
ending) Crimes per 1000 people  

 

 
Key:  

          Bracknell Forest Council            Mean for Bracknell Forest CIPFA nearest neighbours                

4th quartile 3rd quartile 2nd quartile 1st quartile 
 

74

https://lginform.local.gov.uk/
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=9102
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=9092
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=6080
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=6080
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=6080
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=100
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=100
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=9922
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=9922
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=13414
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=13414
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=49
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=49
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=42
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=42
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=9175
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=1071
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=1071
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=1071

	Agenda
	5 Community Safety
	CSP Presentation-Notes related to pages 14-17 of the powerpoint presentation

	6 Council Plan Overview Report
	CPOR July-September 2023/24
	Section 1: Chief Executive’s Commentary
	Introduction
	Overview of Q2 and highlights
	Challenges identified and being addressed

	Section 2: Budget Position
	Section 3: Strategic Themes
	Value for money
	Economic resilience
	Education and skills
	Caring for you and your family
	Protecting and enhancing our environment
	Communities

	Section 4: Corporate Health
	Summary of People
	Staff Voluntary Turnover
	Staff Sickness

	Summary of Complaints
	Strategic Risks and Audits

	Section 5: Community Health



